
EUROPEAN PARLIAMENT

DELEGATION TO THE EU-MOLDOVA PARLIAMENTARY
COOPERATION COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING

on

Tuesday, 25 April 2006

10.15-11.15

BRUSSELS

CONTENTS

1. Adoption of the draft agenda ...................................................................................2

2. Chairman's announcements .....................................................................................2

In the presence of the European Commission :

3. Exchange of views with H.E. Mr. Adriann JACOBOVITS DE SZEGED,
EU Special Representative to the Republic of Moldova .........................................2

4. Any other business ...................................................................................................2

Annex : attendance list



2

The Chair of the delegation, Ms MIKKO, opened the meeting at 10.20 hours. She welcomed EU 
Special Representative to the Republic of Moldova, Mr JACOBOVITS DE SZEGED, and 
Commission’s representative, Mr DE LUTZENBERGER. Draft agenda was adopted without 
amendments.

Mr JACOBOVITS DE SZEGED started by explaining the new customs regime between Kiev and 
Chisinau. He said that the Transdniestrian government made impossible for its businesses to export,
in order to provoke a crisis. He noticed that Transdniestrian side intended not to stop the crisis until 
the next Ukrainian government is in place. He then mentioned the 5+2 negotiations in Moscow. He 
said that EU monitoring of the Transnistrian-Ukrainian border was going well. He said that the 
recent incident in the Varnitsa station occupied by Transnistrians was unacceptable. He stressed that 
the EU should continue to support Ukraine. He finally reminded that Russian troops had to leave
Moldovan territory as agreed under the Istanbul agreement.

Ms MIKKO thanked Mr JACOBOVITS DE SZEGED and gave the floor to Mr DE 
LUTZENBERGER.

Mr DE LUTZENBERGER agreed with Mr JACOBOVITS DE SZEGED. He said that there were 
two additional points: the future of the border assistance mission and the implementation of the EU-
Moldova Action Plan. He noticed that Moldova had made serious progress. However, he added that 
concerns remained about human rights, democratisation and the Pasat case.

Ms MIKKO thanked Mr DE LUTZENBERGER and gave the floor to Mr GOMOLKA.

Mr GOMOLKA pointed out that EU should be consistent. He reminded that Moscow artificially 
restricted Moldovan wine exports. He said that there was a necessity to facilitate trade with 
Moldova. He mentioned his recent visit to Romania and stressed the need to make Moldova more 
attractive. He commented about the Pasat case and said that there were clear political reasons in the 
affair. He proposed then to listen to Mr PASAT during the next visit to Moldova. He finally said 
that Moldova’s membership would depend on its preparedness to meet all the criteria.

Ms MIKKO said that she had requested to have a discussion with Mr PASAT. She also proposed to 
organise a mini-session with regard to the Russian ban of Moldovan wine. She agreed with Mr 
GOMOLKA on the necessity to facilitate Moldovan exports, including Moldovan wine.

Mr JACOBOVITS DE SZEGED agreed with the idea to give support to Moldova.

Mr DE LUTZENBERGER said that there was a clear need to diversify Moldova’s exports. He 
reminded that Moldova was already benefiting from the GSP+ system. He added that Moldova 
needed to look for new markets for its exports.

Ms ANDRIKIENE reminded that Transnistria had withdrawn from the 5+2 negotiations. He asked 
the question about the progress in the negotiations.

Mr JACOBOVITS DE SZEGED said that Transnistrian enterprises were not deprived from 
exporting. He pointed out that the solution was not difficult to find but political will was missing. 
He reminded that the EU and US had the status of observers and not mediators. He said that the EU 
could fully participate but Transnistria had left the negotiations and actually was supported by 
Russia.

Mr DE LUTZENBERGER stressed the need to promote the cross-border cooperation between 
Moldova and Romania. He said that the Commission was very active.



3

Ms MIKKO said that the situation in Moldova was very serious and that the Russian ban of 
Moldovan wine was alarming. She referred again to the situation in Varnitsa station.

Mr JACOBOVITS DE SZEGED said that Mr SMIRNOV is stronger than he was six months
earlier, and that actually he was talking about the recognition of Transnistria’s independence and 
joining the Russian Federation. He pointed out the humanitarian and financial assistance from 
Moscow. He said that EU should continue to support Ukraine.

Ms MIKKO asked about the Commission’s position on the referendum in Transnistria.

Mr DE LUTZENBERGER said that the Commission was very concerned. He reminded that the EU 
did not recognise Transnistria nor any form of referendum in the separatist region.

Ms SCHROEDTER said that withdrawal of the Russian troops was a key issue. She said that the
EU had to put pressure on Moscow in order to stop the financial assistance to the separatist region.

The vice-chair of the delegation, Mr KACIN, said that Russian interference in Transnistria should 
be put on the agenda of the next EU-Russia Summit.

Ms MIKKO supported the idea of Mr KACIN. She drew attention of members to the statements on 
the border assistance mission and the Russian wine ban. She thanked all the participants. The 
meeting was closed at 11.20 hours.

*****



4

BILAG/ANLAGE/ΠΑΡΑΡΤΗΜΑ/ANNEX/
ANNEXE/ALLEGATO/BIJLAGE/ANEXO/BILAGA

DELTAGERLISTE/ANWESENHEITSLISTE/ΚΑΤΑΣΤΑΣΗ ΠΑΡΟΝΤΩΝ/RECORD
OF ATTENDANCE/LISTA DE ASISTENCIA/LISTE DE PRESENCE/ELENCO DEI

PRESENTI/PRESENTIELIJST/LISTA DE PRESENÇAS/LÄSNÄOLOLISTA/DELTAGARLISTA

Til stede

Anwesend

Παρόvτες

Present

Presentes

Présents

Presenti

Aanwezig

Läsnä

Närvarande

Formandskabet/Vorstand/Πρoεδρείo/Bureau/Ufficio di Presidenza/Mesa/Puhemiehistö/J.L. Presidium: (*)

MIKKO (P), PODKANSKI (VP), KACIN (VP)

Medlemmer/Mitglieder/Μέλη/Members/Diputados/Députés/Deputati/Leden/Deputados/jäsenet/
ANDRIKIENE, GOMOLKA, SCHROEDTER

Stedfortrædere/Stellvertreter/Αvαπληρωτές/Substitutes/Suplentes/Suppléants/
Membri supplenti/Plaatsvervangers/Membros suplentes/Varajäsenet/Suppleanter:

Art. 147,7 /Art. 178.2

Art. 166,3/ Art. 183.3
PIKS 

Art. 162.6
Endv. Deltog/Weitere Teiln./
Συμμετείχαv επίσης/Also present
Participaron igualmente/
Participaient également/
Hanno partecipato altresiή /
Andere deelnemers/
Outros participantes/
Muut osallistujat/ Dessutom deltog 

(Dagsorden/Tagesordnung Pkt/Ημερήσια Διάταξη 
Σημεί/Point OJ/Punto OG/Agenda Punt/Ordem do dia-
punto/punto orden del dia/
Esityslista Kohta/Föredragningslista punkt):

* (P)    =Formand/Vorsitzender/Πρόεδρoς/Chairman/Président/Presidente/Voorzitter/Presidente/Puhemies/Ordförande
(VP) =Næstform./Stellv. Vorsitz./Αvτιπρόεδρoς/Vice-Chairman/Vice-Président/Vicepresidente/Varapuhemies

Ondervoorz./Vice-Pres./Vicepres/Vice ordförande.

Til stede den/Anwesend am/Παρώv στις/Present on/Présent le/Presente il/Aanwezig op/Presente em/Presente el/Läsnä/Närvarande den.

(1)
(2)
(3)



Efter indbydelse fra formanden/Auf Einladung d. Vorsitzenden/Με πρόσκληση τoυ Πρoέδρoυ/At the invitation of the Chairman/Por invitación del 
presidente/Sur l'invitation du président/Su invito del presidente/Op uitnodiging van de voorzitter/A convite do presidente/Puhemiehen kutsusta/
På ordförandens inbjudan:

Radet/Rat/Συμβoύλιo/Council/Consejo/Conseil/Consiglio/Raad/Conselho/Neuvosto/Rådet: (*)
JACOBOVITS DE SZEGED 

Kommissionen/Kommission/Επιτρoπή/Commission/Comisión/Commissione/Commissie/Commissão/Komissio/
Kommissionen: (*)
DE LUTZENBERGER

Missions/Ambassades: 
OSTROVSKIS (RP Lettonie)

Andre deltagere/Andere Teilnehmer
Επίσης Παρόvτες/Also present
Otros participantes/Autres participants/Altri partecipanti
Andere aanwezigen/Outros participantes
Muut osallistujat/Övriga deltagare

NEMECK-RAXMERE-LITOWCZENKO-SOMELAR-ZEMITIS-FORTUNATO-
STANILILYTE-DEL SOLE-CORREA DA SILVA (ass. MEP/stagiaires)

RYBAK

Gruppernes sekretariat     
Sekretariat der Fraktionen
Γραμματεία τωv Πoλ. Ομάδωv
Secretariat political groups
Secr. de los grupos politicos
Secr. groupes politiques
Segr. dei gruppi politici
Secr. van de fracties
Secr. dos grupos politicos
Puolueryhmien sihteeristö
Gruppernas sekretariat

PPE-DE
PSE
ALDE
Verts/ALE
GUE/NGL
IDM/DE
MUEN
NI

MYLONAS

DYCHA

Cab. du Président .

Cab. du Secrétaire Général

Generaldirektorat
Generaldirektion
Γεvική Διεύθυvση
Directorate-General
Dirección general
Direction générale
Direzione generale
Directoraat-generaal
Direcção general
Contrôle financier
Service juridique
Pääosasto
Generaldirektorat

I
II
III
IV
V
VI
VII
VIII

Udvalgssekretariatet
Ausschußsekretariat
Γραμματεία επιτρoπής
Committee secretariat
Secretaria de la comisión
Secrétariat de la commission
Segretariato della commissione
Commissiesecretariaat
Secretaria de comissão
Valiokunnan sihteeristö
Utskottssekretariatet

POPESCU-BLACK, SOLOVYANENKO, SCHMUTTERER

Assist./Βoηθός
MOLLET

*   (P) =Formand/Pres./Πρόεδρoς/Chairman/Président/Voorzitter/Puhemies/Ordförande
(VP) =Næstform./Vize-Pres./Αvτιπρόεδρoς/Vice-Chairman/Vice-Président/Ondervoorz./Vice-pres/Varapuhemies/Vice ordförande.
(M) =Medlem./Mitglied/Μέλoς/Member/Miembro/Membre/Membro/Lid/Membro/Jäsen/Ledamot
F) =Tjenestemand/Beamter/Υπάλληλoς/Official/Funcionario/Fonctionnaire/Funzionario/Ambtenaar/ 

Functionário/Virkamies/Tjänsteman


